TA7 W34m no.



MISCELLANEOUS PAPER GL-82-18

# IN SITU SEISMIC INVESTIGATION OF BLACK BUTTE DAM

by

José L. Llopis and Ronald E. Wahl

**Geotechnical Laboratory** U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station P. O. Box 631, Vicksburg, Miss. 39180

> December 1982 **Final Report**

Approved For Public Release; Distribution Unlimited



Prepared for U. S. Army Engineer District, Sacramento Sacramento, Calif. 95814 LIBRARY BRANCH TECHNICAL INFORMATION CONTER US ARMY ENGINEER WATCHING STATION VICKSBURG. MISSISSIPPI

Unclassified

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE (When Data Entered)

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE		READ INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING FORM
1. REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSION NO.	3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER
Miscellaneous Paper GL-82-18		
4. TITLE (and Subtitle)		5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED
IN SITU SEISMIC INVESTIGATION OF BL	ACK BUTTE DAM	Final report
		6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER
7. AUTHOR(a)		8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(8)
José L. Llopis and Ronald E. Wahl		
9. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Exper Geotechnical Laboratory P. O. Box 631, Vicksburg, Miss. 39	iment Station 180	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS
11. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS U. S. Army Engineer District, Sacramento Sacramento, Calif. 95814		12. REPORT DATE December 1982
		13. NUMBER OF PAGES
14. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different	from Controlling Office)	15. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)
		Unclassified
		15a. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE
16. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)		1
Approved for public release; distri	bution unlimited	
17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract entered in	in Block 20, if different fro	m Report)

TA7 W34m no.G12-82-18

18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES

Available from National Technical Information Service, 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield, Va. 22151.

19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessary and identify by block number)

Black Butte Dam Field tests Seismic investigations Seismic waves

20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if necessary and identify by block number)

An in situ seismic investigation consisting of surface refraction, surface vibratory, downhole, and crosshole seismic tests was conducted at Black Butte Dam located near Orland, Calif. Compression-, shear-, and Rayleigh-wave (P-, S-, and R-wave) velocities as a function of depth were determined for the Black Butte Dam and underlying foundation materials.

Results of the investigation indicated that P-wave velocities in the dam's core exhibited values of 2150, 5050, and 3050 fps with (Continued)

DD 1 JAN 73 1473 EDITION OF 1 NOV 65 IS OBSOLETE

Unclassified

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE (When Data Entered)

Unclassified

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Data Entered)

#### 20. Abstract (Continued).

increasing depth. The random-fill section indicated velocities of 1825 and 3225 fps. The foundation materials exhibited velocities of 1500, 4400, 6775, and 9850 fps; the first two foundation zones correlated with alluvium while the latter two were representative of the Black Butte Series and Chico Formation, respectively. Materials on the right abutment had velocities of 1225, 3500, and 9825 fps corresponding to slope wash, Tehama Formation, and basalt flows, respectively, while materials on the left abutment were determined to have velocities of 2375 and 8225 fps representative of slope wash and basalt, respectively.

The S-wave velocity profile showed that the dam's core had velocities of 875, 650, and 975 fps with increasing depth. The random-fill section of the dam had velocities of 1100 and 1675 fps. Foundation materials had velocities of 675, 1350, and 1800 fps with the first two velocities representative of alluvium and the third velocity corresponding to the Black Butte Series. R-wave velocities on the right abutment ranged from about 640 to 1125 fps from near surface to a 37-ft depth.



Unclassified

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Data Entered)

#### PREFACE

An in situ seismic investigation at Black Butte Dam was authorized by the U. S. Army Engineer District, Sacramento, under IAO Nos. SPKED-F-80-23 and SPKED-F-82-1, dated 3 April 1980 and 14 October 1981, respectively.

The field investigation was performed during the periods 12-15 May 1980 and 18-22 May 1982. Messrs. Ronald E. Wahl, José L. Llopis, Donald E. Yule, Donald H. Douglas, Rodney N. Walters, and Michael K. Sharp, and LT Stephen G. Sanders of the Field Investigations Group, Earthquake Engineering and Geophysics Division (EEGD), Geotechnical Laboratory (GL), and Mr. Monroe B. Savage of the Instrumentation Services Division (ISD), of the U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station (WES), were members of the field parties who carried out this project. The analysis phase of this study was performed by Messrs. Wahl and Llopis under the general supervision of Dr. Arley G. Franklin, Chief, EEGD, and Dr. William F. Marcuson III, Chief, GL. This report was written by Messrs. Llopis and Wahl.

COL Nelson P. Conover, CE, and COL Tilford C. Creel, CE, were Commanders and Directors of WES during the performance of this investigation and the preparation of this report. Mr. Fred R. Brown was Technical Director.

# CONTENTS

Pa	ge
PREFACE	1
CONVERSION FACTORS, U. S. CUSTOMARY TO METRIC (SI)	2
UNITS OF MEASUREMENT	S
PART I: INTRODUCTION	4
Background, Purpose, and Scope of Study	4
Site Description	4
Test Program	5
Equipment and Test Procedures	8
PART II: TEST RESULTS	L
Surface Refraction Seismic Tests	L
Downhole P-Wave Tests	2
Downhole S-wave Tests	3
Surface Vibratory Tests	4
Crosshole Tests	5
Data Consolidation	5
PART III: INTERPRETATION	3
P-Wave Velocities	3
S-wave Velocities	9
PART IV: CONCLUSIONS	2
FICURES 1-25	
FIGURES 1-25	
APPENDIX A: BORING LOG FIELD DATA	L

### CONVERSION FACTORS, U. S. CUSTOMARY TO METRIC (SI) UNITS OF MEASUREMENT

U. S. customary units of measurement used in this report can be converted to metric (SI) units as follows:

Multiply	By	To Obtain	
feet	0.3048	metres	
miles (U. S. statute)	1.609347	kilometres	
pounds (force)	4.448222	newtons	
pounds (mass)	0.4535924	kilograms	

# Entre services and

#### IN SITU SEISMIC INVESTIGATION OF BLACK BUTTE DAM

PART I: INTRODUCTION

# Background, Purpose, and Scope of Study

1. Current computerized seismic wave propagation analysis procedures for earth dams and foundations require that values of compressionand shear-wave (P- and S-wave) propagation velocities as a function of depth be determined. These seismic velocities are used in conjunction with conventional field sampling and laboratory testing to provide soil property information for a dynamic analysis of the dam and its foundation.

2. A geophysical investigation was conducted at Black Butte Dam, which is located on Stony Creek approximately nine miles\* west of the town of Orland, Calif., as shown in Figure 1. The investigation was performed to determine P- and S-wave velocities as a function of depth within the dam and its underlying foundation materials. A suite of seismic test methods was used in order to determine an optimal P- and S-wave velocity zonation of the dam and foundation for use in a dynamic analysis.

### Site Description

3. The Black Butte Dam is a zoned earth-fill structure with a crest length of 2970 ft, a maximum width of about 700 ft, and a maximum height of 150 ft; construction was completed in 1963. The zones consist of a central impervious core and a random-fill shell. The impervious core trench was founded on rock (basalt) on the abutments and mudstone in the valley section. Depths of excavation for the core trench ranged from approximately 1 to 60 ft. The foundation for the embankment consists of the Chico Formation, the Black Butte Series, and alluvium.

\* A table for converting U. S. customary units of measurement to metric (SI) units is presented on page 3.

4. The Chico Formation consists of sandstone, sandy shales, conglomerates, and a minor amount of limestone. The sediments overlying the Chico Formation are referred to as the Black Butte Series. The basal member is a conglomerate with an average thickness of 25 ft; it is overlain by materials grading upward from a clayey sandstone through a pseudosandstone (i.e., has the appearance of fine-grained sandstone, but is composed of clay to an arenaceous claystone). This material has been grouped under the general heading of mudstone.\*

5. The majority of the alluvium upon which the dam is founded consists chiefly of floodplain and stream deposits. The floodplain deposits consist of lenticular deposits of clay, silt, sand, and gravel. These deposits are gray in color, unconsolidated, and have been deposited in such a manner that fines predominately occupy the upper limits with the gravels largely confined to the lower two-thirds. The vertical thickness of this deposit averages 8 ft. The Recent stream deposits are chiefly rounded to subrounded rock fragments (gravel) and are composed of volcanics with minor amounts of diorite, quartzite, schists, and chert. These deposits are porous, loose, and are 17 to 20 ft in vertical thickness.\* A plan view of the dam is shown in Figure 2. Transverse and longitudinal cross sections are presented in Figure 3.

### Test Program

6. After a preliminary geophysical test program had been planned by personnel of the U. S. Army Engineer District, Sacramento, it was submitted to the U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station (WES) for review. Pertinent information relative to the design and construction of the embankment was provided to aid in that review. The finalized test program consisted of seismic refraction, crosshole, downhole, and

surface vibratory tests which would provide the geophysical data necessary to complete an analysis of the dam's response to earthquake loadings.

\* Design Memorandum No. 4, Black Butte Project, Stony Creek, Calif., Dam and Appurtenances, Appendix A, 1 January 1959, U. S. Army Engineer District, CE, Sacramento, Calif. The locations of the tests performed during this investigation are shown in Figure 2. The average pool elevation while conducting surface refraction and vibratory tests was 459 ft (12-15 May 1980). During the performance of crosshole and downhole tests, the average pool elevation was 461 ft (18-22 May 1982).

7. <u>Seismic refraction tests</u>. Surface seismic refraction tests were conducted to determine P-wave velocities, layering (depth to interfaces having contrasting velocities), and anomalous conditions (if any). These tests consisted of four lines, designated R-1 through R-4 which were located and oriented as shown in Figure 2. Forward and reverse traverses were run for each line. Line R-1 was run along the toe of the dam and had a length of 625 ft. Line R-2 was located on the dam crest and was 900 ft long. Line R-3 was run on the right abutment and had a length of 500 ft. Line R-4 was located on the left abutment and had a length of 200 ft.

8. <u>Surface vibratory tests</u>. Ten vibratory lines, designated as V-1 through V-10, were run as shown in the test layout (Figure 2). These tests were conducted to determine Rayleigh-wave (R-wave) velocities, which are similar in magnitude to S-wave velocities, as a function of depth. Lines V-1 through V-4 were located on the dam crest while lines V-5 through V-8 were located on the toe. Lines V-9 and V-10 were run on the right abutment. All the vibratory lines were 200 ft in

length.

9. <u>Crosshole tests</u>. Crosshole tests were conducted in three borehole sets (AB, CD, and EF) with each set consisting of two borings. Boreholes in each set were spaced approximately 10 ft apart at the locations shown in Figure 2.

10. The purpose of the crosshole investigation was to determine horizontal P- and S-wave velocities as a function of depth. One advantage of crosshole testing as opposed to surface seismic refraction is its ability to detect lower velocity layers underlying or sandwiched between layers of higher velocity. The crosshole technique is therefore considered to be inherently more definitive and accurate than the surface refraction test but has the shortcoming of requiring boreholes and

not being able to cover as much areal extent; thus the techniques are used in a complementary manner.

11. Borehole set AB was approximately 45 ft deep and was located on the center line of the crest near sta 21+00. These borings were used for obtaining velocities of the impervious core. Borehole set CD was approximately 135 ft deep and located 32 ft below the crest of the dam on the downstream face near sta 21+00; these borings were designed to obtain velocities of the pervious zone, alluvium, and Black Butte Series (i.e., the foundation materials). Borehole set EF was approximately 95 ft deep and located on the downstream toe near sta 21+00; these borings passed through the alluvium and into the Black Butte Series.

12. All borings for the crosshole tests were drilled 8 in. in diameter and cased with 4-in. ID polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe by WES personnel. The annular space between the casing and walls of the borings was grouted with a mixture of portland cement, bentonite, and water, which. after setting up, had approximately the consistency of soil. A borehole deviation survey was conducted to determine precise vertical alignment because accurate reduction of data from the crosshole tests requires knowledge of the drift of each borehole so that a straightline distance between boreholes at each test depth can be established. Since distances and corresponding arrival times were known for each test elevation, an analysis of the crosshole data obtained from each of the

three sets was made with the aid of a computer program developed at WES.\*

13. <u>Downhole tests</u>. Downhole P- and S-wave tests were conducted to complement surface seismic refraction and crosshole tests thereby increasing overall confidence in data obtained. Downhole P- and S-wave tests were conducted in borings A, C, and E at 5-ft-depth intervals with the source located 5 to 9 ft from the mouth of the borehole. In addition to the determination of P- and S-wave velocities, the downhole test has the ability to detect inversion layers. However, certain limitations must be recognized:

\* Butler, D. K., Skoglund, G. R., and Landers, G. B. 1978. "CROSSHOLE: An Interpretative Computer Code for Crosshole Seismic Test Results, Documentation, and Examples," Miscellaneous Paper S-78-8, U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, CE, Vicksburg, Miss.

- <u>a</u>. Lower limits of measurable velocity are inherently established by the velocity of the casing or grout which can act as a wave guide for the vertically traveling seismic waves.
- b. Accuracy of incremental velocities is directly related to the preciseness of timing control available on the seismograph. In high velocity materials, incremental time differences could be on the order of 1 or 2 msec. Therefore, an error of 0.5 msec in a distance of 10 ft or less would be appreciable. In view of these limitations, the downhole test must be used with discretion.

### Equipment and Test Procedures

14. <u>Seismographs</u>. Two different types of seismographs were utilised for recording surface refraction, surface vibratory, crosshole, and downhole test data. Refraction lines R-1 and R-3, and all surface vibratory lines were performed using a portable, battery-powered, 24channel seismograph, and an oscillograph. Refraction lines R-2 and R-4, crosshole, and downhole tests were conducted with a portable, batterypowered, 12-channel seismograph which had data-enhancement capability.

15. <u>Geophones</u>. For seismic refraction and surface vibratory tests, material response was detected by vertically oriented geophones. For crosshole and downhole tests, the material response was monitored by a triaxial array of geophones (two mounted horizontally at 90 deg to each other, and one vertically oriented) housed in one container. 16. <u>Energy sources</u>. For seismic refraction lines R-1 through R-3 the seismic energy source was 2 to 5 lb of two-component explosive charges with the amount of explosives used being dependent on the length and location of the line. Charges were buried between 3 and 5 ft dependent on the location of the line. For refraction line R-4, the seismic source was generated by applying sledgehammer blows to a steel plate seated on the ground surface.

17. The energy source for the surface vibratory lines was a 4000-1b force (peak) electrohydraulic vibrator with a 10- to 300-Hz frequency range.

18. For crosshole seismic tests, a downhole vibrator was used as a generator of vertically polarized shear (SV) waves. Exploding bridgewire detonators were used as a P-wave source.

19. The energy source for the determination of P-wave velocities for the downhole test consisted of striking a steel plate, seated on the ground, with a sledgehammer. S-waves for the downhole S-wave test were generated by alternately striking each end of a wooden plank lying on the ground with a sledgehammer.

20. All phases of the geophysical test program with the exception of the surface vibratory and crosshole S-wave tests were conducted in accordance with procedures outlined in Chapter 3 of EM 1110-1-1802, "Geophysical Exploration," dated 31 May 1979. In this manual, a detailed description of each test technique employed is presented along with pertinent background information. The surface vibratory test procedure consisted of positioning the vibrator at a selected location and placing the geophones in a straight line (starting at and extending away from the vibrator) at selected intervals along the surface of the ground. The vibrator was then operated at discrete selected frequencies with the surface R-wave being monitored by the transducers (geophone nearest the vibrator served as zero time). The time lag, referenced to the zero time geophone, is determined and plotted versus the respective distances that the geophones were from the vibrator. The R-wave velocity for the source

frequency is determined from the slope of the line obtained in the plot. When the frequency and R-wave velocity are known, a corresponding wavelength can be computed by dividing the velocity by the frequency. Wave velocities thus derived are considered to be average values\* for an

\* R-wave velocities that are determined near a high velocity contrast interface, such as a soil-rock boundary, will probably be influenced by both the higher and lower velocity materials and thus provide weighted average velocities dependent on the physical properties of two layers.

effective depth of one-half the wavelength. As mentioned previously, R-wave velocities are numerically close to S-wave velocities. For the range of Poisson's ratios commonly found in soil materials, the maximum difference between R- and S-wave velocities is less than 10 percent.\*

21. The crosshole S-wave test differed from that described in EM 1110-1-1802 in that instead of using a surface-mounted vibrator as a seismic source, a downhole vibrator was employed. The procedure consisted of lowering the vibrator in the borehole to a selected test elevation and clamping the vibrator firmly to the sidewalls of the PVC casing by means of an inflatable rubber bladder. When the vibrator was in position, the operator swept the oscillator through a range of frequencies (50- to 500-Hz) and selected one that propagated well (one with a high amplitude) through the transmitting medium. The time required for the transmitted signal to reach the receiver geophone was recorded with a seismograph with enhancement capabilities and the corresponding S-wave velocity determined.

 \* Ballard, R. F., Jr. 1964. "Determination of Soil Shear Moduli at Depths by In Situ Vibratory Techniques," Miscellaneous Paper 4-691, U. S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, CE, Vicksburg, Miss.

## PART II: TEST RESULTS

# Surface Seismic Refraction Tests

22. Basic data acquired from seismic refraction tests are conventionally displayed in time-distance plots. The data from lines R-1 through R-4 are shown in Figures 4-7, respectively.

23. Seismic refraction line R-1 was located on the toe of the dam between sta 19+00 and 25+25. Four P-wave velocity zones were determined as shown in Figure 4.\* The first zone extended to depths of 6 and 16 ft and had an average velocity of 2150 fps. The underlying second zone was encountered to depths of 23 and 42 ft and had a true velocity of 4750 fps. Zone 3 had a true velocity of 6750 fps and ranged from 110 to 115 ft in depth where Zone 4 was encountered with a true velocity of 9850 fps.

24. Seismic refraction line R-2 was run on the crest of the dam approximately between sta 19+00 and 28+00. Three P-wave velocity zones were indicated as shown in Figure 5. The first zone had an average velocity of 1625 fps and extended to depths between 10 and 40 ft. The underlying zone had a true velocity of 2950 fps and ranged between 132 and 136 ft in depth where Zone 3 was encountered with a true velocity of 6875 fps.

25. Seismic refraction line R-3 was located on the right abutment between the outlet channel and downstream toe (sta 12+00 to 17+00) and was oriented in a southeast-northwest direction. Three P-wave velocity zones were detected as shown in Figure 6. The first zone had an average velocity of 1225 fps corresponding to the overburden and ranged from 5 to 11 ft in thickness. Zone 2, corresponding to the Tehama Formation (poorly consolidated, fluvially deposited pebbles, sand, silts, and clays) extended to depths ranging from 18 ft on the northwestern end of the line to 58 ft on the southeastern end and had a true velocity of 3500 fps.

\* All velocities reported are assumed, based on timing resolution and judgment, to have an accuracy of +12.5 fps. Below the above zones, layer 3, which corresponds to the basalt layer, had a true velocity of 9825 fps.

26. The time-distance plot for seismic line R-4 which was located on the dam's left abutment and oriented in an east-west direction is presented in Figure 7. Two velocity zones were determined. The first zone which corresponds to talus (basalt rubble) deposits had an average velocity of 2375 fps with a thickness varying from 34 ft on the western end of the line to 15 ft on the eastern end. The underlying material, basalt, had a true velocity of 8225 fps.

### Downhole P-Wave Tests

27. Downhole test results are presented in conventional time versus slant distance (slant distance is nearly equal to depth) plots. Figures 8-10 show the results of downhole P-wave tests conducted at 5-ft-depth intervals in borings A, C, and E, respectively.

28. Figure 8 presents the data collected from the downhole test conducted in boring A, crest of dam, which was 45 ft deep. Two velocity zones were indicated which are tabulated as follows:

> Approximate Depth to Top of Interface. ft

> > 0

25

Zone

1

2

Velocity, fps

2165 2750

29. Figure 9 presents the data acquired from the downhole P-wave test in boring C, downstream face, which was 135 ft deep. Four velocity zones were determined as follows:

Zone	Approximate Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	1900
2	10	3300
3	105	4000
4	120	6675

30. Figure 10 presents the data collected from the downhole Pwave test conducted in hole E, located on the downstream toe of the dam, which was 95 ft deep. The results indicated three velocity zones tabulated as follows:

Zone	Approximate Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	1300
2	12	4375
3	33	7075

#### Downhole S-Wave Tests

31. Data obtained from downhole S-wave tests are conventionally shown in arrival time versus slant distance plots. Slant distance is almost equal to depth. The results of the downhole S-wave tests conducted in boreholes A, C, and E are presented in Figures 11-13, respectively.

32. Only one velocity zone was detected from the downhole S-wave test conducted in boring A which was located on the crest, as shown in Figure 11. The velocity of this zone was determined to be 925 fps.

Figure 12 presents data acquired from the downhole S-wave 33. test conducted in boring C, downstream slope. Two S-wave velocity zones were interpreted as follows:

Zone	Approximate Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	1000
2	20	1920

Figure 13 presents results from the downhole S-wave test con-34. ducted in boring E located on the downstream toe. Two velocity zones were indicated as follows:

	Approximate Depth to Top	
Zone	of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	600
2	12	1825

#### Surface Vibratory Tests

35. The results from the ten surface vibratory lines (V-1 through V-10) are shown as R-wave velocity versus depth plots which are presented in Figures 14-18. A best-fit curve was drawn through the points in each plot to obtain the velocity profile.

36. Figure 14 presents the R-wave velocity versus depth data for lines V-1 and V-2 which were run on the paved service road on the crest of the dam approximately between sta 18+00 and 22+00. The velocities ranged between 700 and 950 fps and were nearly constant at about 900 fps between depths of 5 and 10 ft below which the velocity decreased quite rapidly to about 700 to 750 fps. Below 15 ft, the velocity gradually increased to 950 fps to a depth of 60 ft. The higher velocities encountered near the surface are probably due to a higher shear modulus associated with the pavement and subgrade materials.

37. Figure 15 presents the R-wave velocity versus depth plot for vibratory lines V-3 and V-4 which were run on the crest of the dam between sta 24+00 and 28+00. The best-fit curve for these lines showed a decrease in velocity from 830 fps at 6 ft to 700 fps at 9 ft. From 9 to 27 ft, the velocity remained fairly constant at 700 fps. Below 27 ft, there is a gradual increase to about 900 fps at a depth of 55 ft.

38. Figure 16 presents the R-wave velocity versus depth for lines

V-5 and V-6 which were located on the toe of the dam between sta 24+00 and 28+00. The best-fit curve showed a nearly constant velocity of about 700 fps to a depth of 10 ft at which point the velocity increased almost linearly with depth to 1000 fps at 27 ft.

39. Figure 17 presents the results from vibratory lines V-7 and V-8 run on the toe of the dam approximately between sta 19+00 and 23+00. The best-fit curve indicated a decrease in velocity from 800 to 750 fps in the 6 to 8-ft-depth range. Below 8 ft, the velocity increased al-most linearly to 1000 fps at a depth of 27 ft.

40. Figure 18 presents results from vibratory lines V-9 and V-10 which were run on the right abutment of the dam between sta 13+00 and 17+00. Two best-fit lines were drawn for the data. Data from line

V-9 exhibited a linear increase in velocity with depth ranging from 640 fps at approximately 6 ft to 950 fps at about 33 ft. Velocities from lines V-9 and V-10 coincided between depths of 6 and 10 ft and appeared to correlate with the overburden materials. At a depth of approximately 10 ft, the velocity from line V-10 indicated a sharp increase to about 750 fps and then began to increase almost linearly with depth to 1125 fps at 37 ft. The depth to the higher velocity basalt is less below line V-10 than line V-9; therefore, a higher R-wave velocity is exhibited by line V-10 because of the R-wave averaging characterisitcs near a high-velocity contrast interface.

### Crosshole Tests

41. The calculated true P- and S-wave velocities as determined by the crosshole computer program at each test elevation for the three crosshole sets are presented in Figure 19. As noted, test elevations were at 5-ft intervals except for crosshole set EF (toe) where no data were obtained from the S-wave test in the upper 10 ft. Also shown in Figure 19 are P- and S-wave velocity zones and depths to interfaces as established by the computer program and judgment.

42. The P-wave velocities for crosshole set AB representative of the core material indicated three velocity zones as follows:

Zone	Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	2950
2	27	5050
3	33	3450

43. The S-wave velocity zones for crosshole set AB indicated three zones as follows:

Zone	of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	825
2	13	525
3	23	1050

44. The P-wave velocity zones for crosshole set CD representative of the pervious zone and foundation materials are as follows:

Zone	Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
		<u> </u>
1	0	1750
2	10	3150
3	113	4600
4	121	6550

45. The S-wave velocity zones for crosshole set CD are as follows:

Zone	Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	1200
2	36	1550
3	114	1400
4	121	1700

46. The P-wave velocity zones for crosshole set EF representative of the dam's foundation materials are as follows:

Zone	Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	1275
2	10	4375
3	24	6875

47. The S-wave velocity zones for crosshole set EF are as

# follows:

Zone	Depth to Top of Interface, ft	Velocity, fps
1	0	
2	15	1175
3	27	1850

## Data Consolidation

48. In order to make a meaningful interpretation of the data acquired at various locations along the dam using the four different geophysical techniques, it is convenient to present the data in composite form so that a zonal interpretation can be developed using all the available data. Such composites were prepared for P- and S-wave tests conducted in the vicinity of the cross section near 21+00 and are presented in Figures 20 and 21, respectively.

49. As shown in Figure 20, three zones of the dam were tested: core, random (pervious), and foundation beneath and at the toe of the dam. Results determined from seismic refraction, downhole, and crosshole tests are presented for the core and foundation materials at the toe, while downhole and crosshole results are depicted for the random zone. Comparison of the results from each test for a specific zone are generally in good agreement on velocities and depths to interfaces.

50. As depicted in the S-wave composite (Figure 21) tests were conducted in the same three zones shown in the P-wave composite. Results from crosshole, downhole, and surface vibratory tests are presented for the dam core and foundation materials at the toe. Results from the downhole and crosshole tests are presented for the random zone and foundation material beneath the dam. Velocities and depths to interfaces differ somewhat due to varying limitations between test techniques.

#### PART III: INTERPRETATION

#### P-Wave Velocities

The P-wave velocity composite (Figure 20) was analyzed and a 51. zonal interpretation made for sta 21+00 using weighted averaging and judgment based on data quality and the limitations and advantages of each test performed. Since the borings on the crest did not penetrate the foundation materials, thus preventing the acquisition of data from downhole and crosshole tests, two approaches were used to present values for use in this region for the seismic wave propagation analysis. The first approach does not involve the extrapolation or interpolation of velocities beyond areas in which measurements were made, and is presented in Figure 22. The zoning through the core and underlying foundation revealed four velocity zones. The first zone had a velocity of 2150 fps and extended to a depth of about 25 ft. The second zone had a velocity of 5050 fps with a thickness of 8 ft. It will be noted that both the seismic refraction and downhole P-wave tests failed to discern this layer; however, it was detected by the crosshole P-wave test. Even though only one out of three tests distinguished this faster layer, it was felt that it should be reported since the boring logs indicated the highest blow counts occurred in this zone. Underlying the above zones was a 3050-fps layer which extended to approximately 150 ft (the damfoundation contact). The fourth zone corresponding to the Black Butte Series had a velocity of 6875 fps to undetermined depths. Four velocity zones were interpreted for the random material. The first zone had a velocity of 1825 fps and extended to a depth of 10 ft. The underlying second zone extended to a depth of about 110 ft with a velocity of 3225 fps. Underlying the above layers was a third zone having a velocity of 4300 fps which corresponded with the alluvium. At a depth of about 122 ft, the Black Butte Series was encountered with a velocity of 6625 fps to 135 ft. The tests conducted at the downstream toe of the dam revealed four P-wave velocity zones for the foundation material. The near-surface layer exhibited a velocity of 1500 fps and had a

thickness of 10 ft. The second zone had a velocity of 4500 fps and extended to a depth of 27 ft. The first two zones correlated with the alluvium. The Black Butte Series was encountered at a depth of 27 ft and had a velocity of 6900 fps. The seismic refraction line exhibited a fourth zone having a 9850 fps velocity at a depth of about 111 ft. It is possible that this zone corresponds to the Chico Formation.

52. The second approach for interpreting P-wave data was to assign zonal velocities according to constructed zones of the dam and foundation layering this involves some interpolation and extrapolation based on the principle that with other things being equal seismic wave velocities increase with effective stress. The results of this method are presented in Figure 23 for the cross section through sta 21+00. Three velocity zones were interpreted for the core (Figure 23). The upper 25 ft of core material had a velocity of 2150 fps while the underlying second zone had a velocity of 5050 fps. The lateral extent of the second layer cannot be predicted. The core, from a depth of 33 ft to the dam-foundation contact, had a velocity of 3050 fps. The random zone exhibited two velocity zones. The upper 10 ft of random zone material had a velocity of 1825 fps. The rest of the random zone was assigned a velocity of 3225 fps. Results of testing in the foundation materials yielded four velocity zones. The first zone which was encountered only at the downstream toe had a thickness of 10 ft and a velocity of 1500 fps. The second zone exhibited a velocity of 4400 fps and correlated with the alluvial sand and gravel layer. The third zone, indicative of the Black Butte Series, had a velocity of 6775 fps. The thickness (about 84 ft) of the Black Butte Series was measured only at the toe of the dam. Underlying the Black Butte Series, the Chico Formation was encountered with a corresponding velocity of 9850 fps at a depth of about 111 ft.

# S-Wave Velocities

53. S-wave zonal interpretations were made in the same manner as employed for P-wave interpretations previously discussed. Figure 24

presents the S-wave zonal velocity interpretation through the cross section at sta 21+00. Three zones were determined for the core. The first zone extended to a depth of 12 ft and had a velocity of 875 fps. The underlying zone with a velocity of 650 fps extended to a depth of 22 ft where the third zone was encountered with a velocity of 975 fps to a depth of 45 ft, the limit of testing. The velocity profile through the random zone and into the foundation revealed four zones. The first zone, 28 ft thick, exhibited a velocity of 1100 fps. The second zone which extended to the dam-foundation contact had a velocity of 1675 fps. The alluvium directly beneath the dam had a velocity of 1400 fps and a thickness of about 7 ft. A velocity of 1750 fps was detected at 121 ft deep and is probably indicative of the Black Butte Interpretation of data obtained at the downstream toe of the Series. dam revealed three zones. The first zone, corresponding to alluvium, had a velocity of 675 fps and a 15-ft thickness. The underlying zone also corresponded to alluvium and had a velocity of 1300 fps extending to 27 ft in depth where the Black Butte Series was encountered. The Black Butte Series in the toe area was determined to have a 1825 fps velocity to a depth of 95 ft, the extent of testing.

The second interpretation approach (based on constructed zones 54. of the dam) is presented in Figure 25. The core is divided into three zones. The first zone was 12 ft thick with a velocity of 875 fps. The second zone which ranged from 12 to 22 ft in depth had a velocity of 650 fps. The third zone extended from a depth of 22 ft to the damfoundation contact and exhibited a velocity of 975 fps. The random zone of the dam was divided into two velocity layers. The upper 28 ft of random material had a velocity of 1100 fps. The rest of the random material was interpreted to have a velocity of 1675 fps. The foundation materials were divided into three velocity zones. The first zone corresponding to the near-surface materials at the toe, had a thickness of about 15 ft and a velocity of 675 fps. Underlying the above zone and extending laterally to the transition zone was a layer with a velocity of 1350 fps and an average thickness of about 10 ft. The above two zones corresponded to the alluvial materials. Beneath the alluvium, a velocity of 1800 fps was encountered which correlated with the Black Butte Series.

#### PART IV: CONCLUSIONS

55. The following conclusions were drawn as a result of the in situ investigation conducted at Black Butte Dam.

56. The interpretation of P-wave data indicated three velocity zones in the core and two velocity zones for the random fill. The core had velocities of 2150, 5050, and 3050 fps while the random zone had velocities of 1825 and 3225 fps. The foundation materials investigated consisted of alluvium and materials belonging to the Black Butte Series and Chico Formation. The alluvium on which the dam rests had a velocity of 4400 fps. At the toe of the dam, the 4400-fps alluvium is overlain by alluvium having a velocity of 1500 fps. Underlying the alluvium is the Black Butte Series which had a velocity of 6775 fps. The Chico Formation had a velocity of 9850 fps and was encountered only by the refraction seismic test conducted at the toe.

57. Results from seismic refraction tests indicated three velocity zones for the right abutment of the dam. The first zone, slope wash, had a velocity of 1225 fps. The second zone, corresponding to the Tehama Formation, had a velocity of 3500 fps while the third zone, basalt flows, had a velocity of 9825 fps. The left abutment had velocities of 2375 and 8225 fps which correlated with slope wash and basalt, respectively.

58. The S-wave velocity profile for Black Butte Dam showed that the core had three velocity zones of 875, 650, and 975 fps. The random zone was interpreted to have velocities of 1100 and 1675 fps. For the foundation, alluvial material in the vicinity of the downstream toe, had a 675 fps velocity and a thickness of 15 ft. For the remainder of the alluvium at the toe and extending beneath the dam to the transition zone, a velocity of 1350 fps was noted. The Black Butte Series, which underlies the alluvium, was determined to have a velocity of 1800 fps.

59. Results from surface vibratory tests conducted on the right abutment indicated that R-wave velocities ranged from 640 fps near the surface to 1125 fps at a depth of 37 ft.



Figure 1. Locality map



Figure 2. Plan view and test layout of Black Butte Dam







Figure 3. Cross section of Black Butte Dam



Figure 4. Surface refraction line R-1, toe of dam





Figure 6. Surface refraction line R-3, right abutment of dam



Figure 7. Surface refraction line R-4, left abutment of dam





Figure 8. Downhole P-wave test conducted in borehole A, crest of dam



Figure 9. Downhole P-wave test conducted in borehole C, downstream slope of dam



TIME, msec

Figure 10. Downhole P-wave test conducted in borehole E, downstream toe of dam



crest of dam


TIME, msec

downstream face of dam



TIME, msec

Figure 13. Downhole S-wave test conducted in borehole E, downstream toe of dam



VELOCITY, fps

Figure 14. R-wave velocity versus depth for lines V-1 and V-2, crest of dam



VELOCITY, fps

Figure 15. R-wave velocity versus depth for lines V-3 and V-4, crest of dam



VELOCITY, fps



Figure 16. R-wave velocity versus depth for lines V-5 and V-6, downstream toe of dam

÷1





Figure 17. R-wave velocity versus depth for lines V-7 and V-8, downstream toe of dam





Figure 18. R-wave velocity versus depth for lines V-9 and V-10, right abutment of dam



## Figure 19. Crosshole results for cross sections through approximate sta 21+00



CORE

Figure 20. P-wave composite for cross section through approximate sta 21+00



Figure 21. S-wave composite for cross section through approximate sta 21+00





Figure 22. P-wave zonal velocity interpretation for cross section through approximate sta 21+00



Figure 23. P-wave velocity contours for cross section at approximate sta 21+00



Figure 24. S-wave zonal velocity interpretation through cross section at approximate sta 21+00





APPENDIX A: BORING LOG FIELD DATA

A1

							1	FIELD DATA	
Project	Be	ACK	Bui	TE	DAM			Site	
Drill Ri	igCE4	522	Inspecto	or and	LOYD	0	perator i	FRANK STEWAT	RT SI
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DR	IVE	SAN	PLE	TYPE OF	QINE
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	OUT
	GOCT	0		0	1.0			-	
1	GOCT			1.0	1.5	1,4	2.5	SPLITS POOD.	JAR
				1.5	2.0				
				a.0	2.5				
	6027		4,5	2.5	4.5			-	
2	GOCT	4.5		4.5	5.0	4.8	6.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR
				5.0	5,5				
				5.5	6.0				
3	60CT			6.0	6.5	6.0	6.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR
				6.5	7.0				
				7.0	7.5				

	Date 60078/
	Job No
e E	Boring No. SS-z "A"
, PS	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
	ROCK BIT 6 14 THEOUGH PRUGHENT TO
	STRET SPLITSPOON AT 1.0
3	HARD-GRAY SANDY SOIL WITH & GRADE
1	
3	
1	ROCK BA 63/4 - HEAVY GRAVEL
	TOP 0.5 TAN SANDY CLAY
	BOTTOM 0,7' BLUE SANDY CLAY WITH
1	GRAVEL, MEDIUM STIFFNESS
	- 1
	TAN & BLUESANDYCLA, MED. STIP
2	
,	

							B	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio	BL/	ACK EST	But	TE DI	9M			Site		
Drill Ri	ig <u>CE 45</u>	SZZ I	nspect	DR	LOYD	0	perator 2	FRANK STEWAN	er Su	rfa 1
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	DITAL	r
4	GOCT			7.5	8.0	7.5	7.9	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				8.0	8.5					
			-	8.5	9.0					1
				9.0	10.0					
5	GOCT			10.0	10.5	10.2	11.5	SPEITSFOOD	JAR	
				10,5	11.0					
				11.0	11.5					1
	60cT			11.5	13.0					
6	TOCT			13.0	13.5	13.2	14.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				13.5	14.0					
				14.0	14.5					

Date\_60CT 81 Job No.\_\_ Boring No. 55-2 "A" ace El\_ 500 CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 4 TAN & BLUE SANDY CLIFY WITH FOCKS 5 MED. STIFFNESS 5 2 ROCK BIT 634 - HEAVY GRAVEL NO SAMPLE TAN SANDY CLAY MED. STIFFNESS 55 4 BOCK BIT 63/4 - HEAVY GRADEL - NO SAMPLE TAN-BLUE SANDY CLAY WITH FER GRAVEL MED. STIFFNESS 4 Sheet 2 of 5 Sheets

						B	IELD DATA	
BLA CR CE4S	CK B	uTTC nsnect	TOLEL	2 609	D O	nerator 1	Site	DET SU
DATE	STRA	тим	DR	IVE	SAN	IPLE		were
TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	COSTRI
TOCT			14.5	15.0	14.8	16.0	SPC/TSPOON	JAR
			15.0	15.5				
70CT			16,0	16.5	16.Z	17.5	SPLITS POOD	JAR
			16,5	17.0 17.5				
7007			17.5	18.0	17.5	18.0	SPLATSPOON	JAR
			18.0 18.5	18.5				
FOCT			19.0	19.5	19.0	19.4	SPLITSPOON	JAR
			19.5	20.0				
	BLA         CR         CE45         DATE         TAKEN         70CT         70CT         70CT	BLACK       B         CREST       C         CE4522       I         DATE       STRA         TAKEN       FROM         70CT       I         I <td>BLACK       Buttte         CREST       CREST         CE4522       Inspector         DATE       STRATUM         TAKEN       FROM         70CT      </td> <td>BLACK       Buttle Data         CREST       CE4522         DATE       STRATUM       DR         TAKEN       FROM       TO       FROM         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       17.5         70CT       17.0         70CT       17.0         70.0       17.0         70.0       17.0         70.0       17.0   <td>BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4522 Inspector OLED COP         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       TIVE         TAKEN       TOILED COP         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TOCT       /4.5       /5.0         70CT       /7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0          7.0       &lt;</td><td>BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4SZZ Inspector OLED (040) 0         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TO FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.0       15.5       16.0       7.0         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         70CT       17.0       17.5       19.0       20.0       20.0</td><td>F         BLACK BLITTE DAM         CREST         CE4S32 Inspector OLED COYD Operator 2         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         SAMPLE         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM TO         TOCT       14.5       IS.O 14.8       (6.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 16.5       IS.O 16.5         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.5          17.5<td>FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA Site CREST CE4522 Inspector OLED COYD Operator FRANK STENN DATE TAKEN STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE TYPE OF SAMPLER TYPE OF S</td></td></td>	BLACK       Buttte         CREST       CREST         CE4522       Inspector         DATE       STRATUM         TAKEN       FROM         70CT	BLACK       Buttle Data         CREST       CE4522         DATE       STRATUM       DR         TAKEN       FROM       TO       FROM         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       14.5         70CT       15.0         15.5       15.0         70CT       17.5         70CT       17.0         70CT       17.0         70.0       17.0         70.0       17.0         70.0       17.0 <td>BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4522 Inspector OLED COP         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       TIVE         TAKEN       TOILED COP         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TOCT       /4.5       /5.0         70CT       /7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0          7.0       &lt;</td> <td>BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4SZZ Inspector OLED (040) 0         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TO FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.0       15.5       16.0       7.0         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         70CT       17.0       17.5       19.0       20.0       20.0</td> <td>F         BLACK BLITTE DAM         CREST         CE4S32 Inspector OLED COYD Operator 2         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         SAMPLE         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM TO         TOCT       14.5       IS.O 14.8       (6.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 16.5       IS.O 16.5         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.5          17.5<td>FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA Site CREST CE4522 Inspector OLED COYD Operator FRANK STENN DATE TAKEN STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE TYPE OF SAMPLER TYPE OF S</td></td>	BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4522 Inspector OLED COP         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       TIVE         TAKEN       TOILED COP         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TOCT       /4.5       /5.0         70CT       /7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0       /7.0         7.0          7.0       <	BLACK BUTTE DAM         CREST         CE4SZZ Inspector OLED (040) 0         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE       SAN         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TO FROM TO FROM TO FROM         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.5       15.0       14.8         TOCT       14.0       15.5       16.0       7.0         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         TOCT       17.5       18.0       17.5         70CT       17.0       17.5       19.0       20.0       20.0	F         BLACK BLITTE DAM         CREST         CE4S32 Inspector OLED COYD Operator 2         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         DATE TAKEN         STRATUM       DRIVE         SAMPLE         TAKEN       FROM TO FROM TO FROM TO         TOCT       14.5       IS.O 14.8       (6.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 16.5       IS.O 16.5         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.0         TOCT       17.5       IS.O 17.5       IS.O 18.5          17.5 <td>FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA Site CREST CE4522 Inspector OLED COYD Operator FRANK STENN DATE TAKEN STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE TYPE OF SAMPLER TYPE OF S</td>	FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA FIELD DATA Site CREST CE4522 Inspector OLED COYD Operator FRANK STENN DATE TAKEN STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE TYPE OF SAMPLER TYPE OF S

Date 7007 81 Job No. \_ Boring No. SS-Z "A" face EI BLOWS CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 4 TAN-BLUE SAUDY CLAY, MED. STIFFUESS 6 TAN- BLUE SANDY CLAY, MED. STIFFLESS 4 6 11 4 TAN. BLYE SANDY CLAY HED. STIFFNESS 7 8 3 TAN SANDY CLAY WITH GRAVEL 3 SOFT 4 Sheet 3 of 5 Sheets

							B F	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio Drill Ri	BC m CR gCE 45	EST 522 1	Bu	OT OLEL	DAM ) LOY	D_0	perator 2	Site	TET Su	ırfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	and the second	1
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	то	FROM	TO	SAMPLER	ed stra	80
# //	70cT			24,0	24.5	24.0	24.2	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	,
				24.5	25.0					
#12	FOCT			29.0	29.5	29,4	30.5	SPRITSPOOD	JAR	
				29,5	30,0					1
-				5010	0010					
=/3	POCT			34.0	34.5 35.0	34.2	35.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				35.0	35.5					1
#14	FOCT			39.0	39.5	39.7	40.5	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	(
				39.5	40.0					4

	Date 7 OCT 81
	Job No.
ice I	EI Boring No. <u>SS-Z</u> "A"
025	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
10	TAN SAND CLAY WITH SMALL ROCKS
9	
9	
9	TAW-BLUE SANDY CLAY - HARD
0	
15	
4	TAN-BLUE SAUDY CLAY-SOME ROCK
6	HARD
0	
6	TAN -BLYE SANDY CLAY, HARD
9	
3	
	Sheet 4 of 5 Sheets

							1	FIELD DATA	
Project Locatio	BLA On CRE	ST	Butt	E DR	M			Site	OFS
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	тим	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	Su Su
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	COMPIL
#15	7007			44.0	44.5	44.0	44.2	SPCITSPOON	JAR
				44.5	45.0	-			
#14	FOCT			49.0	49.5	49,0	49.7	SPLITSPOON	JAR
				49.5	50.0				
*	Groute	DWIT	AIPP	PET C	EMEN	р <del>т</del> -17	ART	GEL WWATER	Grou
	CASING	WAS	S≡T I	WCAP (	DN Bor	TOH O	F Pipu	CHECKED 4	37/8

	Date 700781
	Job No.
ce El_	Boring No. SS-2 "A"
ouss	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
5 7	AN BLUE SANDY CLAY
3	HED. STIFFENESS
2	
- 7	AN-BLUE SANDY CLAY
3 /	YED STIFFNESS
3	
NOW	AS DONG AFTER 4" I.D. PVC
TEEL	INST. GEONTED FROM O' to 50
-	

							E	FIELD DATA		
Project Locatio	BLA On CRE	ACK	Вит	E DI	PM DIOU			Site	aT .	
Drill R	ig <u>Ce 9</u> .	SZC		DR DR	IVE		perator A	FZANK SIEWA	SU SU	ırfa 1
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	POPTRI	à
*	80cT	0		0	4.0			-		ľ
			4.0						*	
1	BOCT	4.0		4.0	6.4	4.2	6.4	5 X64 BARREL	JAR	5
2	80CT			9.0	11.4	9.1	11.4	5"X6 1/4 BARREL	JAR	5'
3	BOCT			14.0	16.4	14.0	15.0	5"x 61/4 BARREL	JAG	5
4	80cT			19.0	21.4	19.0	19.7	5 X6/4 BARREL	JAR	5
5	80cT			24.0	26.4	24.4	26.4	S'X6 14 BARRE	JAR	57
4	80cT			29.0	31,4	29.0	29.6	S" X 614 BARREZ	DAL	5
7	90cT			34.0	36.4	34.2	36.4	S"X6/4 BARREL	JAR	54
8	POCT			39.0	41.4	39,4	41.4	5 × 6/4 BARRER	JAR	5

Date SOCT 8/ Job No. -Boring No. US-2 "B" ce El Particles CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS ROCK BIT 6 4 HEAVY ROCK - NO SAMPLE TUBE TAN-BILLE SANDY CL WITH GRAVEL "TUBE TAN- SANDY CL, STIFF, SIME GRADEL TUDE TAN BLUE SANDY CL, MED. TUBE TAN SANDY CL MED THE TAN-BLUE SANDY CL, HED, GRAVEL TUBE TAN-BLYC SANDY CL, MED, GRANEL TUBE TAN BLUE SANDY CL, MED, GRAVEL TUBE BLUE SANDY CL MED Sheet \_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_ Sheets

4	Terra a			7781		135	<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG	
Project	Be	ACK	Bur	TE	DAM	1	-	Site	
Drill R	ig CE4	522	Inspecto	OLEN	1040	0	perator	RANK STEWA	ET SI
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	ТИМ	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	AN DER
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	3
9	9 OCT			44.0	46,4	44.4	46,4	5"X64 BARELL	SAR
p	90CT			49.0	51,4	50.0	51.4	5"X6 /4 BARRET	JAR
*	Grout	ED WI	TH 11-	ARTO	ene	07 70	I PAK	T GET W/WI	ATER
	GROUT	ED C	4 WH	501.	ych	POD	20770	MOF PVC,	CHE

Date 90c781 Job No.\_\_\_\_\_ Boring No.2/S-2 "B" face El\_ EDJR1128 CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS STUBE TAN BLUE SANDY CL MED GRAVEL CREDWITH 3% STEEL INST. Sheet Z of Z Sheets

SAMPLE DATE NUMBER DATE TAKEN 26 NOV 26 NOV	STRA	TUM	DR FROM 0.0 0.0	IVE TO 10,0	SAM FROM	PLE TO	TYPE OF SAMPLER 6% Rock Bit 8 Rock Bit	
NUMBER TAKEN 26 NOV 26 NOV 26 NOV	FROM	TO	FROM 0.0 0.0	T0 10,0 10,0	FROM	TO	SAMPLER 6% Rock Bit 8 Rock Bit	
26 NOV 26 NOV 26 NOV			0.0	10,0			6 74" Rock Bit 8" Rock Bit	
26 NOV 26 NOV			0.0	10,0			8" Rock Bit	
26 NOV			10.0	120				
				13.0			6% Rock Bit	
27 NOV								

Date 26 NOV 8/ Job No.\_ Boring No. US 3A "C" ce El. CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS Clean Out Hole Clean Out Hole CIEQN OUT Hale-LOST Bit AND GUIDE IN HOLE- ROD SNAPPED FISHED OUT Bit AND DISCOVE red VARGE VOID Due to FALL IN OF VOOSE GRAVEL FROM THE WALL, VOID begINS JUST UNDER THE AFT THICK CONCRETE DASE USED As quide hole GrowT Hole W/HARD GROUT 26613 GrOUT USED TO FILL VOID FIND Hole UP TO CONCRETE 6ASE Sheet \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_ Sheets

								BORING LOG FIELD DATA
Project Locatio Drill R	BLAC	K 73	ITH O	E DA	7M 3 I 4	0000NS	TRE	Site AM SLOPE STENART
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DR	IVE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER
	28 NOV			4.0	35.0			63/4 ROCK BIT
	28 NOV							***
	30 NOV			35.0	57.0		ALCON March	6ª ROCK BIT
	IDEL			57.0	87.0			6ª ROCK BIT
	ZDEC			87.0	120.0			63"ROCK BIT
	3DEC			120.0	121.0			6ª ROCK BIT

Date 28 NOV 81 Job No. \_ Boring No. 4538 "C" Irface EI CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLEAN OUT Hole of Grout THEN Drill to 35.0 Ft Grout Hole W/SOFT Grout 1/2 bbls GrowT USED CLEAN OUT Hole CLEAN OUT HOLE CLEAN OUT Hole FOUNDATION BEDROCK @ 116.0' appears to be SILTSTONE-Clay with large Rocks INTERMIXED by drill effect to 120.0 CLEAN Out Hole Sheet 2 of 4 \_\_\_\_Sheets

Project Locatio Drill R	BLAC on 10 ff	South	A OP	553 or 70/	эн 7	Dowe	perator S	STEWART	_ Sur
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	
1	3 DEC		-	121.0	123.0	123,0	123.0	5×61/4	
	3 DEC			123,0	125.0			634"ROCK BIT	
2	3DEC			125.0	126.0	125.0	125.9	5×6/4	
2 A						125.9	126.0	CORE BARRER	-
	4DEC			126.0	130.0			6 H Rax BIT	
3	4 DEC			1.30.0	131.7	130.3	131.6	5×6/A	
3A						131.6	131.7	CORE BARREI	
3A	4 DEC			131.7	135.5	131.6	131.7	CORE BARREL 63/4 ROCK Bit	

Date 3 DEC 8/ Job No. -Boring No. US3A "C" face El. CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS NO SAMPLE RECOVERED. SEVERAL TEETH OF BIT WERE DESTROYED AND/OF BROKEN OFF CLEAN OUT HOLE TUBE CLAVEY SILTSTONE - DARK to LIGHT JAR GREEN COLOR - VERY COHESIVE LITTLE MOISTURE-SOME WHAT BRITTLE CLEAN OUT Hole TUBE CLAYEY SILTSTONE- DARK GREEN SAR VERY COHESING-LITTLE MOISTURE Somewhat Brittle CLEAN OUT Hole Sheet 3 of 4 Sheets

Project	BLA	CKE	347	TE DE	M		F	Site		
Locatio Drill R	ig SKIT	Sout	nspect	SS3	Do	0	Perator S	M SLOPE TEWART	_ Sui	
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DR	DRIVE		PLE	TYPE OF		
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	то	FROM	TO	SAMPLER		
4	4DEC			135.5	138.0	135.7	137.7	5×6/4		
44						137.7	138.0	Core BARRE/		
								1.5		
5	4DEC			138.0	140.0	138.0	140.4	5×61/4		
5A						140.4	140,5	CORE BArrel		
	4DET									
	SDEC									

WES JAN 74 819 EDITION OF

EDITION OF NOV 1971 MAY BE USED

Date 4 DEC 81 Job No. Boring No. US3A face El CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS TUBE CLANEY SILTSTONE - DARK GREEN JAR VERY COHESING-LITTLE MUISTURG BRITTLE TUBE CLAYEY SILTSTONE-DARK Green JAR DERY COMESIVE-LITTLE MOISTURE Brittle 4-in PVC Qasing Grouted WPLACE N/2 BARNel HARD GROUT FROM 140.5' to 116.0' SOFT GrOUT, 31/2 BBL From 116.0' to 0.0 Ft. Sheet 4 of 4 Sheets

							B	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio Drill Ri		CK I	BUTTE REPM	DAI SLO OLEN	H DPÉ LOYD	0	perator <i>L</i>	Site	<b>ZI</b> Su	rf
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	ATUM	DR	IVE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	Alla	Г
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	S.	R
	Rack	BIT	WITH	63/4"	THEY	5.51	RIP RAT	Þ		
*/	ZINOV	5.5		5,5	6.0			SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				6.0	6.5					
				6.5	7.0					+
#2	ZINOV			10.0	10.5	10.7	11.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				10.5	11.0					
				11.0	11.5					
#3	2/NOV			15.0	15.5	16,0	16.5	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	
				15.5	16.0					
				16.0	16.5					1
#4	21 NOV			20.0	20.5	21.2	21.5	SPLASPOON	SAL	
				20.5	21.0					
			21,5	21.0	21.5					1

	Date 21 OCT 81
	Job No.
ace	EI Boring No. 55-3 "D"
er on	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
4	TAN-SANDY CL MED.
4	
10	
15	TAN - GRAY SANDY CL MEL
23	
26	
5	TAN-GRAY SANDY CL MED.
9	FEW GRAVEL
16	
3	TAN SANDY CL MED.
9	
11.	

			हिंग्द्र	1	1013		Ē	BORING LOG		1
Project	BLA	CK B	UTTE	DRI	ч	-		Site		
Locatio Drill R	ig	WUST	nspecto	OLGA	D LOY	0_0	perator	FRANK STEWAT	ET SI	ırfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DR	IVE	SAN	PLE	TYPE OF	Bile	Τ
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	ŝ	RÌ
	Rock	BIT (	63/4")	To ZE	3.0'L	PRGE	Puroce	TOF PERG	RAVE	2
	THEY	ARE	Belie	EVED	Comi	NGFR	OMA	CAUITY RAP	rox.	6
	CEME	ENT-C	SELF	IXTUR	E US	ing (	PALCI	UM CHLORI	De .	6
	used	11/2 8	AGS C	eme	TEI	12 BF	Gs G	el Mixed w	TH W	A
	7.0'	ON 2	3 OCT	81 U	sed 2	BAC	SCE	MEATZZE	AGS	C
	WITH	WATE	R.7	HIS F	Iled .	Hole	E CA	0174.		-
\$5	24OCT	21.5		28.0	28.5	28.5	29,5	SPRITSPOON	JAR	-
				28.5	29.0					3
_			-	29,0	29.5					17
#6	26 OCT			35.0	35.5	35.3	35.9	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
DUT				35.5	35.9					
	GROUT	ED 70	ADE	PTH	0= 40	2' 11+	H Ce	NENT/WATE	R CA	20
	used	5-50	5 GAL	OZZ	OGI	04.70	FILL	Hole .9 BA	GC	e
	DONE	Bee	PUSE	OF 7	PILU	REOF	Cem	ENT-GelF	IXTO	R

Date 21 OCT 81 Job No.\_ Boring No.55-3 "D" ace EI\_\_\_\_ 5000 CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS COMING FROMHOLE. DOWN, GrOUTED Hole WITH AccelerATE SET 22DET SI TER, THIS FILLED Hole to FEL CALCIUM CHEORIDE MIXED 33 COARSE GrAY SAND-STIFF 33 RBOUT O.Z' TAN CL AT BOTTOH 30 OF SAMPLE 20 COARSE GRAY SAND-STIFF 50 CIUM CHLORIDE, Grout MENTUSED. THIS WAS R Sheet 2 of 10 Sheets

							<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio	BCAG	CK T	BUTTO	= Dq. 1 Sco	M			Site		
Drill R	ig		nspecto	r CEE	0 20	<u>70</u> 0	perator A	-RANK STEWA	EF SU	₽ T
SAMPLE NUMBER	DATE TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	ТО	FROM	TO	TYPE OF SAMPLER	224	4
	27 at	Rock	K BIT	BAC	K TO Z	O'TA	ROUGH	CONCRETE	GR	20
	28 0.T	Rock	BIT	Tos	1017	HROUC	5H Ce	NCRETE G	eoui	ł
#7	28 0CT			40,0	40.5	40,5	41.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				40,5	41,0					
				41,0	41.5					-
#8	280CT			45.0	45,5	45.3	46.5	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	
	_			45,5	46.0					
				46.0	46.5					4
#9	ZBOCT			51.0	51.5	51,1	51.8	SPLITSPOON.	DAR	
				51,5	51.8					
#10	280CT		-	55.0	55,5	55.1	56.0	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	
				55.5	56.0					

Date 270CT 81 Job No.\_ Boring No. SS-3 "D" ace El. Cal. CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS IT 19 COARSE GRAY SAND W/FEW 3/4" 33 GRAVEL - STIFF +3 25 COARSE GRAY SAND WFEN GRAVEL 33 STIFF - SMALL FMOUNT OF 5 TANCL. 50 COARSE TAN/GRAY SAND-STIFF 50 25 COARSE TAN/GRAY SAND-STIFF 50 SOME GRAVEL Sheet 3 of 10 Sheets

							<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio		CK 7	EAM	E DR SLO	DPE LOYD	0	nerator E	Site	T Su	r
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	тим	DR	IVE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	O INIG	f
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	COUT	A
# 11	240cT			60.0	60.5	60,0	61.0	SPLASPOOD	JAR	
				60.5	61.0					
# 12	29007			65.0	65.5	65.5	65.9	SPLITSPOUN	JAR	
				65.5	65.9					
# 13	24005			70,0	70,5	70.Z	71.4	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	
				70.5	71,0					ļ
		-		71.0	71.4					
#14	300CT			75.0	75.5	75,6	75.9	SPLITSPOON	JAR	ł
				75,5	75,9					
#15	300CT			80.0	80.5	80,2	81,3	SPLITSPOON	JAC	
				89,5	81,0					
				81.0	81.3					
										1

	Date 29 OcT 8/
	Job No.
face E	EI Boring No. 55-3 "D"
town on	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
35	TAN-GRAY CORRES SAND-STIF
50	
34	TRU-GRAY COARSE SAND-STIFF
50	
20	TRI-GRAY (DARSE SAND-MED
35	LARGE GRAVEL IN BOTTOM DESS
50	GAUE HIGHLAST ZEADING, TRACE OF
40	GRAY COARSE SAND-MED
60	LARGE GRAVE / GAVE HIGH READ
30	TAN-GRAY COARSE STAND-STIFF
50	Few 1/2"GRAVEL
50	

							B	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio Drill R	BLA Dou	CK T	BUT REP nspect	OLE	-OPE J LOY	1D 0	perator <b>T</b>	Site	T_ Si	urfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DR	IVE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	5	F
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	TO	SAMPLER	COUTAIN	B
#16	300cT			85,0	85,5	85.2	860	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	3
-				85.5	86,0					5
#17	3/0CT			90.0	90,5	90,3	91.4	SPLASPOON	JPR	Z
				90,5	91.0					4
				91.0	91,4					5
# 18	31007			95.0	95.5	95.1	95.9	SPLITSPOON	JAR	4
				95.5	95,9		24-6			4
	4 NOV			40.0	100.0			63/4"Rock BT		
#19	5NOV			100.0	100.9	100,2	100,9	SPLASPOON	JAR	
	GNOV			100.9	105.0			634" ROCK BIT		

	Date 30 OCT 81
	Job No.
ace t	Boring No. <u>33-3</u> D
100)s	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
5	GRAY COARSE SAND-MED.
0	
5	GRAY COARSEBAND - MED.
6	
1	
10	GRAY COARSE SAND-STIFF
.0	
_	CLEAN OUT Hole- HIT FOUNDATION @99.0"
75	GODY SPUDY MH-FINE - TO HED. GERY
5/	Goovel 3/a" MAX-LITTLE MOISTUPE CONESION
	SMALL RS Red GRAvel NOTED
	CLEAN OUT Hole
	Sheet 5 of 10 Sheets

	Print			13V L	The second		<u>B</u> f	ORING LOG		
Project	BLA	CK E	34TTE		٩			Site		
Locatio Drill R	ig SKID	DISTRO	nspect	or Tom	26	0	perator _	STENART	Si	ırf
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DR	DRIVE		PLE	TYPE OF	Oliver	1
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	CAPTI	4
#20	GNON			105.0	104,5	105:5	106.5	SPCITSPOON	JAR	
				-						
										+
										+
					13.78					+
	GNOV			41.5	106.5			6 3/4 Rock BIT		t
# 21	9NOV			106.5	107.3	106.5	107.3	SPRITSPOOR	JAR.	
										+
										+
SSD PUT										+
		1222								+
	9 NOV			107,3	1080			6 3/4 Rock BIT		
								-		

Date GNOV 81 Job No.\_\_ Boring No. 55-3 "D" ace El\_\_\_\_\_ Laws CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 27 SAND-GRASFINE to MED 30% 45 GRAVEL-GRAY WHITE 3/4" MAX 50 GOOD CONSOLIDATION LITTle HOISTURE GROUT Hole FROM 106, SET to 41, SET 120gAl the: 13.5 645 AcTUAL 1:1 Cmt/Get W/c = 3.2? REAM OUT Hole 41.5 to 106.5Ft 40 106,5 to 106.9 CLAY W/GRAVES 50 3/4" GRAY, dENSE, MOIST 106.9 to 107.3 SANDY GRAVE! FINE to Hed SAND, GRAD-GRADEL 1/2" MAX. GRAY W/ SOME White pcs FAIR COUSDIDATION, little MOISTURG CLEAN OUT Hope Sheet 6 of 10 Sheets

Project	BLAC	K Bur	TE Z	AM			F	IELD DATA			
Locatio Drill Ri	ig <u>SKI</u>	DSTRE 	nspect	SLOPE or TOM	<u> </u>	0	perator 4	STENART	Su	irfa	
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DRIVE		SAMPLE		TYPE OF	RIVE	T	
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	car.	R	
# 22	9NOV			108.0	109.0	108.0	109.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	2	
	9 NOV			109.0	109.5			63/4 Rock BIT			
#23	9 NOV			109.5	111,0	110.0	///.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	2 2 2	
	IO NON			111.0	114.0			63/4" Rock BIT			

Date SNOV 3/ Job No. \_ "D" Boring No.55-3 ace El. Sec CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 50 CLAYEY SAND GRAVEL - SAND, V 50 EINE GRAY-GRAVEL 3/4" MAX W/ White pes INTERMIXED CLAY BASE, VERY CONESIVE, FAIR MOISTURG CLEAN OUT HOLE O CLAYEY SAND GEAUEL-SAND GRAYE 4 FINE, GRAVE 1 1/4" MAK WHITE 2.2 BOCK W/GRAY GRAVEL pcs CLAY BASE, GRAY, little cohesion little MOISTURE. CLEAN OUT Hole Sheet 7 of 10 Sheets

							B	ORING LOG			
Project	BLAC	K B	BUTT	EDA	M			Site			
Drill R	ig <u>3K1</u>	<u>D</u> 1	nspect	or Tok	1	0	perator 🛓	STEWART	Su	rfa	
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DR	DRIVE		PLE	TYPE OF	and	1	
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	Con .	R.	
#24	10 NOV			114.0	115,5	114.1	115.5	SPLITSPOOD	JAR	-	
	IONON			115.5	118.0			634 ROCK BIT			
¥ 25 <sup>-</sup>	10 NOV			118.0	119,5	118,1	119,5	SPCITSPOOD	JAR 1.3Ft	1	
										4	
	10 NOV			119.5	121.0			63/4 ROCK BIT			
#26	10 NOV			121.0	122.4	121.0	122.4	SPR ITS FOOD	JAC		
										3	

Date\_ 10 NOU 8/ Job No.\_ Boring No. 55-3 "D" ace El\_ ou? CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 27 SAND- MED to COARSE GRAY 33 Gravel 1'S MAK GRAVE WILITE 25 LITTLE MOISTURE, No Cottesian CLEAN OUT Hole 116.0 to 117.0 Sol 10 Back CLAO-MUDSTONE @17.0Ft 6 CLAY - MUDSTONE - GRAVISH GREEN 27 To GREEN, High cottesion, little PLEFAN OUT Hole 17 0.2 ft Y. FINE SAND @121.3 28 CLAY MUDSTONE GREEN HIGH 50 COHESION / H/R MOISTURE Sheet 8 of 10 Sheets

							<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG			
Project	TBL	ACK	Bu-	M SL	DAM			Site			
Drill Ri	g SKIS		nspect	or Top	1	0	perator _	STEWART	Su	rf	
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF			
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER			
	IINOV			122.4	125.0			63/4" BIT			
27	IIDOU			125.0	126.0	125.0	126.0	SPEITSPOOD	JAR		
			_								
	INNOV			126.0	12 <b>9</b> .0			63/4"BIT			
#28	ILNOV			129.0	130.0	129.0	130.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	(	
	INOV			130.0	133.D			63/4 8.7			
#29	IINOV			133.0	134.0	133.0	134,0	Splitspood	JAR	1.1	
								/		i	

Date /1 NOV 81 Job No.\_\_ Boring No. 55-3 "D" ace El\_\_\_\_\_ CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLEAN OUT Hole 25 CLAY-MUDSTONE, GREEN 50 DENSE SOLID Ift PIECE CLEAN OUT Hole 25 CLAN MUDSTONE, GREEN, BROWN 53 GREENISH CLEAN OUT Hole 32 CLAY HUDSTONE, GREEN 50 DENSE Solid IFT PIECE Sheet 9 of 10 Sheets

	BORING LOG FIELD DATA									
Project	BLA	CK	BUT	TE Z	AH			Site	16	
Drill R	ig SKID		nspecto	r_TO	н	0	perator S	STEWART	Su	ırfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DRIVE		SAMPLE		TYPE OF		Γ
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER		
	12 NOV			134.0	137.0			634 Rock Bit		-
30	12 NOV			137.0	137.8	137,0	137,8	SPLITSPOON	JAR	5
										5
										-
1000										-
10-01										+
C BAIL			per ser				224,77	Marking C.		

Date 12 Nov 81 Job No.\_\_\_ Boring No. 55-3 "D" ce El\_\_\_\_\_ CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLEAN OUT Hole CLAY- HUDSTONG DAKK GRAY SOLID DETSE . SH Piece Grout Bottom 20 tt w/ STRAIGHT CEMENT ANDWRTER APPROX 219AL Grout Upper 120ft w/1:1 ZATIO of Centent AND GEL W/ENOUGH WATER FOR A PUMPAble MIXTURE APPROX 127 GAL. GrOUT WAS PLACED FROUND THE 4 IN ID PVC Pipe. WATER LEVEL @ 98.8Ft in PVC Pipe Sheet 10 of 10 Sheets
				Las			Ē	FIELD DATA		
Project Locatio Drill R	BLAN on Down	USTRE	RM To Inspecto	DAM DE NOLEL	, ) LOYD	<u> </u>	perator	Site	<b>27</b> Su	rfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STR	ATUM	DR	IVE	SAN	APLE	TYPE OF	CHUER P	Γ
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	Casti	¢)
1	18SEPT	0,0		0.0	0.5	0.5	1.5	SPEITSPOOD	JAR	8
				0.5	1.0				1	3
				1.0	1,5					4
2	MSEPT			1.5	2,0	1.7	3.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	2
				2,0	2.5					3
			3.0	2.5	3.0					3
3	19 SEPT	3.0		3.0	3.5	3.5	4.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				3.5	4,0				-	1
			4.5	4.0	4.5					
4	IGSEPT	4.5		4.5	5.0	5,1	6.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				5.0	5.5					
				5.5	6.0					

Job No ace EI Boring No. <u>SS-1 "E"</u> CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS B GRAY SAND & GRAVEZ B GRAY SAND & GRAVEZ CO GRAY SAND & GRAVEZ B GRAY SAND, FINIE 14 GRAY SAND, FINIE 14 GRAY SAND, COARSE 14 GRAY SAND, COARSE
CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CL
CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS B B CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS B B CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS CLASSIFICATION AND
B GRAY SAND & GRAVEZ 4 4 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 16 12 12 12 12 14 15 16 12 17 17 17 18 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
4 4 4 4 5 6 6 6 16 12 GRAY SAND, FINE 16 12 GRAY SAND, COARSE 14 12 12 14 15 16 16 17 17 18 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
CO GRAY SAND & GRAVEZ 2 8 4 GRAY SAND, FINIE 6 12 GRAY SAND, COARSE 14
2 8 4 GRAY SAND, FINE 6 16 12 GRAY SAND, Coarse 14
4 GRAY SAND, FINE 6 16 12 Gray SAND, Coarse
4 GRAY SAND, FINE 6 16 12 GRAY SAND, Coarse
6 16 12 Gray SAND, Coarse
16 12 Gray SAND, Coarse
12 Gray SAND, Coarse
14
19
14

							B	ORING LOG		
Project	BLA	OCK T	BUTT	ED	AM			Site		
Drill Ri	ig CE 45	522	Inspecto	DLEN	1040	<u> </u>	perator <b>E</b>	EANK STEWA	PET SI	ırf
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	ATUM	DR	IVE	SAM	IPLE	TYPE OF	- HEP	
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	east	4
5	19 SEPT			6.0	6.5	6.7	7.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				615	7.0					
				7.0	7,5			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		+
6	NSEPT			7.5	8.0	8.3	9,0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				8.0	8.5					
				8.5	9.0					+
7	ISSEPT			9.0	9.5	9.8	10.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	t
				9.5	10.0					T
			10.5	10.0	10.5					
8	ISSEPT	- 10,5		10.5	11.0	11.2	12.0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				11.0	11.5					
			12.0	11.5	12.0					
										1

	Data 16 SEETOI
	Joh No
ace E	Boring No. 55-1 "E"
Den 7	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
6	GRAY SAND, COORSE
7	
9	
4	GRAY SAND, COORSE
6	
10	
L	Gray SAND COarse
10	
15	
8	GrAY SAND Course & GRAVE
11	
14	
	Sheet Z of 7 S

							<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio	BL Don Down	ACK WSTRE	BUT	TE D TOE	AM	0	nerator 7	Site	T SI	urfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRA	TUM	DR	IVE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF		4
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	CONTRIN	B1
9	19SEPT	12.0		12.0	12.5	12.3	13.5	SPCITS POON	JAR	1
				12,5	13.0					1
				13.0	13,5					1
10	IGSEPT			13,5	14.0	13.6	15,0	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
				14.0	14.5					1
				14.5	15.0					2
11	19SETT			15.0	15,5	15.2	16,5	SPLITSPOON .	IAR	
				15.5	16.0					1
				16.0	16.5					2
12	19 Sept			16.5	17.0	16.5	18.0	SPLITSPOON .	JAR.	1
				17.0	17.5					
				125	120		31-1			1

	Date 19 SEPT 81
	Job No.
ce l	EI Boring No. <u>SS-1 "E"</u>
ows	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
7	BLUE-GRAY, SANDY-CLAY HED.
0	
9	BLUE - GRAY, SANDY - CLAY HED.
2	
0	
8	BLUE-GRAY SANDY-CUTY HED
0	
0	
5	BLUE. GRAY SANDY-CLAY HED
8	
5	

						<u>B</u> F	ORING LOG		
BLAC	NSTR.	EAM	DAN	1			Site		
ig <i>CE</i> 4:	1 223	nspector	OLEN	LOYI	2_0	perator 2	RANK STEWA	RTSu	rfac
DATE	STRA	TUM	DR	IVE	SAN	IPLE	TYPE OF	PINE	
TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	ТО	FROM	то	SAMPLER	cont	BL
ISSEPT			18.0	18.5	18.0	19.5	SPLITSFOON	JAR	
			18.5	19.0					0
			19.0	19.5			· · ·		1
19SEPT			25.0	25.5	25.0	26.5	SPCITSPOON	JAR	1
			25.5	26,0					2
			26.0	26.5					2
ISSEPT			30.0	30.5	30,0	31.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	1
			30.5	31.0					2
			31.0	31.5					3
ZISEPT			35.0	35.5	35.0	36.3	SPLITSPOON		
		-	35.5	36.0					4
		36.2	36.0	36.3					5
	BLAC on Dow ig CE 4 DATE TAKEN 19SEPT 19SEPT 19SEPT	BLACK B DATE STRA TAKEN STRA ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT ISSEPT	BLACK BUTTE DATE TAKEN STRATUM TO ISSEPT ISSERT I	BLACK BUTTE DIFI         DATE TAKEN       STRATUM       DR         DATE TAKEN       STRATUM       DR         INSPECTOR OLEAN       INSPECTOR OLEAN         ISSEPT       ISS.0         ISS.5       ISS.0	BLACK BUTTE DIFIM         DATE DIFICATION         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       STRATUM       DRIVE         DATE TRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TRATUM       DRIVE         TRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       DRIVE         TO FROM TO         TO FROM TO         TSEPT       TSO 18.5         TSSEPT       30.0       30.5         TSSEPT       30.0       30.5         TSSEPT       35.0       35.5       36.0         TSSEPT       35.0       35.5       36.0       35.5       36.0       35.5       36.0       35.5       36.0       35.5       36.0       35.5 <td>BLACK BUTTE DIAM         DATE DIAM         DAUSSTREAM TO E         Inspector OLEN LOYD O         DATE STRATUM DRIVE SAM         TAKEN FROM TO FROM TO FROM         JATE TAKEN       STRATUM       DRIVE       SAM         IAKEN       FROM TO       FROM TO       FROM       TO       FROM         195EPT       18.0       18.5       18.0       18.5       18.0         195EPT       18.0       18.5       19.0       19.5       18.0         195EPT       25.0       25.5       25.0       25.0       25.5       25.0         195EPT       30.0       30.5       30.0       30.5       30.0       30.0         195EPT       30.0       30.5       31.0       31.5       35.0         21SEPT       35.0       35.5       35.0       35.5       35.0</td> <td><math display="block">\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c </math></td> <td><math display="block">\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c </math></td> <td>BORING LOG FIELD DATA           Site           Site           Site           Operator FRANK STEWART SU           DALE           TYPE OF SAMPLE           TYPE OF SAMPLE<!--</td--></td>	BLACK BUTTE DIAM         DATE DIAM         DAUSSTREAM TO E         Inspector OLEN LOYD O         DATE STRATUM DRIVE SAM         TAKEN FROM TO FROM TO FROM         JATE TAKEN       STRATUM       DRIVE       SAM         IAKEN       FROM TO       FROM TO       FROM       TO       FROM         195EPT       18.0       18.5       18.0       18.5       18.0         195EPT       18.0       18.5       19.0       19.5       18.0         195EPT       25.0       25.5       25.0       25.0       25.5       25.0         195EPT       30.0       30.5       30.0       30.5       30.0       30.0         195EPT       30.0       30.5       31.0       31.5       35.0         21SEPT       35.0       35.5       35.0       35.5       35.0	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	BORING LOG FIELD DATA           Site           Site           Site           Operator FRANK STEWART SU           DALE           TYPE OF SAMPLE           TYPE OF SAMPLE </td

	Date 193577 81
	Job No.
ce E	Boring No. 55-1 "E"
ows	CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS
5	BLUG-GRAY, SANDY-CLAY MED.
5	
2	BLUE-GRAY, SANDY-GLAY HOD.
2	
3	
0	BLUE. GRAS, SANDY - CLAY HED.
2	-
50	
5	BLUG-GRAU SANDY-CLAY
!/	W/ 11/2" BASALTROCK IN ENDOFSPOOL
0	

							B	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio	BLA Down Down	CK B	UTTE E.P.M	TOE	1040	0	nerator Z	Site	<b>7</b> Su	rfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STR	ATUM	DRI	VE	SAM	PLE	TYPE OF	- Sur	
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	TO	FROM	то	SAMPLER	Parte	RÒ
17	21SEPT	\$6.2		40.0	40.5	40.0	40.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
18	SEPT			45.0	46.5	45,0	45.5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	
						45.5	46.0			3
			1170			46.0	46.5			4
19		47.0	77.0	50.0	55.0	50.0	54.0	3" CORE R-BARREL	CORE	
20				55.0	57.1	55,0	56.0	R-BARREL	CORE	-
21				57.1	59,0	57.1	58,5	R-BARREL	CURE- BOX	
22				59.0	60.3	59.0	60.3	R-BARREZ	Colé Box	-
23				60.3	61.5	60.3	61.5	R-BARREZ	COLE	

Date ZI SEPT 81 Job No.\_ Boring No. 55-1 "E" ce El 220 CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS 50 BLUE-GRAY CLAY WITH ROCKS HED 13 BULE- GRAY W/ROCKS HED. 33 18 BASALT ROCK-LOST / BLUE-GRAY MOD, ICLAY BASALT BOCK - LOST 1.1' W/CLAY BLUE-GRAY MED. BASALT ROCK - LOST 0.5' W/CLAY BLUE-GRAY MED. BASALT ROCK W/CLAP BLUE GRAY HED. BASALT ROCK YOUN BLUE GRAY HED. Sheet 5 of 7 Sheets

						B	ORING LOG		
BLA	USTR	EAH	DAL	1			Site		
ig CE 45	STR4	Inspecto	DR	IVE	0	perator 7	TYPE OF	T Sui	rfac
TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	comm	w
22 SEPT	•		61.5	65.1	62.8	65.1	R-BARRET.	CORF TBOX	1
22 SEPT			65.1	67.3	65.9	67.3	B-BARREZ	CORE	-
23SEPT		70.0	67.3	70.0	69.3	70.0	R-BARREZ	CURE Box	1
24 SEPT	70.0		70,0	70.5	70.0	71,5	SPLITSPOON	JAR	10
			70.5	71.0					23
24 SEPT			71.5	73.0	71.7	73.0	PITCHER TUBE	CARD BOARD	
24SEPT			73.0	74.2	73.0	73.6	PITCHER TUBE	CARD	
24Sept			74.2	76.2	74,6	76.2	PITCHERTUME	aned BORKD	-
	BLP DATE TAKEN 22 SEPT 22 SEPT 23 SEPT 24 SEPT 24 SEPT 24 SEPT 24 SEPT	$     \begin{array}{c}             B \leftarrow PAC.K \\              B \leftarrow P$	BLACK BUTTE DOWNSTREAM igCE 4/5 22 Inspecto DATE STRATUM TAKEN FROM TO 223 SEPT 223 SEPT 233 SEPT 24 SEPT 25 SEPT 26 SEPT 27 SE	B-ACIK       BUTTE       DAIL         DOWNDSTREAM       TOUE         igCE 4/522       Inspector Orector         DATE       STRATUM       DR         TAKEN       FROM       TO       FROM         22 SEPT       GSSEPT       GSS.1         23 SEPT       GSS.1       GSS.1         24 SEPT       70.0       70.0         24 SEPT       70.0       70.5         24 SEPT       70.0       70.5         24 SEPT       73.0       73.0         24 SEPT       73.0       74.2	BLACK BUTTE DAM         DATE DAM         DATE STRATUM       DRIVE         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       FROM       TO         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       FROM       TO         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         TAKEN       TO         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         JATE STRATUM       DRIVE         JATE STRATUM       GIAS SCEPT         JATE TOO       GOAS TOO         JATE TOO       TOAS TIO         JATE TOO       TOAS	B-ACK BUTTE DAM         DATE DAM         STRATUM DRIVE SAM         Inspector OLETU COYD O         DATE STRATUM DRIVE SAM         TAKEN FROM TO FROM TO FROM         ATE STRATUM DRIVE SAM         TAKEN FROM TO FROM TO FROM         ATE STRATUM DRIVE SAM         COM TO FROM TO FROM         COM TO FROM TO FROM TO FROM         COM TO FROM TO FROM TO FROM	BLACK BUTTE DAM           DATE DAM           Operator 70 ETUCOYO Operator 70           Operator 70 ETUCOYO Operator 70           DATE STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE           TAKEN         FROM TO FROM TO FROM TO           DATE TAKEN         STRATUM DRIVE SAMPLE           TAKEN         FROM TO FROM TO FROM TO           GL.S GS.1 G2.8 GS.1           C23SEPT         GS.1 G7.3 C0.0 G9.3 70.0           24 SEPT         70.0 G7.3 70.0 G9.3 70.0 71.5           Z4 SEPT         73.0 74.2 73.0 71.7 73.0           Z4 SEPT         73.0 74.2 73.0 73.6           Z4 SEPT         73.0 74.2 73.0 73.6	BORING LOG FIELD DATA         BLACK BUTTE DAM         Site	BORING LOG FIELD DATA           Site           Site           Operator FERUE STEWRET           DATE           STREAM           DATE           STREAM           DATE           STREAM           DATE           STRATUM           DRIVE           SAMPLE           TYPE OF           GAIS           TOO

Date ZZSEPT 81 Job No.\_ Boring No. 55-1 "EII e El\_\_\_\_ 25 CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS BASALT ROCK - LOST 1.3 WICLAY BLUE MED. BASALT ROCK-LOST 0.8' W/CLAY BLUEMED. BASALT ROCK - LOST Z. U' MUD STONE, GRAY STIFF CLAY HUD STOLLE LOST 0,2' MUDSTONE GERY STIFF CL, MUDSTONE LOST 0.6' HUDSTONE GRAY STIFECL, Sheet 6 of 7 Sheets

							B F	ORING LOG		
Project Locatio	BLA Don Pow	USTRO	BUTT	TOE	M		5.5	Site		
Drill R	DATE	STRA	TUM	or OLEA DR	IVE	<b>D</b> 0	perator <b>Z</b>	TYPE OF	Sullive	r
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER	Colim	K
31	2 <b>4</b> 8/2PT			76,2	78.2	76.2	78.2	PITCHER TUBE	WAX TUBE	+
32	24 SEPT			78.2	80.Z	78.2	80.2	PITCHERTUBE	WAX	
33	25SEPT			B5.0	87.0	85.0	87.0	PITCHER TUBE	WAY	
34	25 SEPT			90.0	92.0	90,0	92.0	PITCHER TUBE	WAY TUBE	
35 ,	25 SEPT			95.0	97.0	95.0	87.0	PITCHERTUBE	WAY TUBE	
36	assent			87.5	99.5	97.5	99.5	PITCHER TUBE	WAY	-
¥ 2"	DD X1 3/8	" I.D. X	2 F†	LONG .	SPL ITS	T COD	RIVER	WITH 140-16	Harr	7
** H	le ca	SED 4	4"I.	D. PVC	PIPE	WITH	CAPOA	Bo Hom. This	HED	2
WES JA	RM 819	EDITIO	A DO	WA TO/ OV 1971 M	AY BE US	PART G	r Rus	WATER USED FR	m 0'+	e

Job No. EI Boring No. 55-1 "E" CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC	EIB CLASSI	ob No oring No. FICATION A	55-1 "(	E 11
EI Boring No. SS-1 "E" CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC	CLASSI	oring No.	ND REMAR	S II
CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CC	? CLASSI Mudrock,	FICATION A	ND REMAR	₹KS
HUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL HUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL	Mudrock,			
MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL		ARAY S	TIFF	<u>e</u> c
MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL	MUDROCK,	GRAY :	ST  F=F= (	CL
HUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL	MUDROCK,	GRA? S	NFF (	CL
MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL	HUDROCK, C	TRAY S	TIFF (	:2
MUDROCK, GRAY STIFF CL	MUDROCK, O	RAY	STIFF	CL.
Zock BIT (03/1"	HUDROCK, 9 Zock BIT	RAY ST	FF	26
W/30" DROP	W/30" DROP	* /4		

							<u>D</u> F	FIELD DATA		
Project	BLA Don Do	PCK	BUTT	E DI TM 7	AM			Site		
Drill R	igCE 4.	522	Inspecto	r OLE	NLO	NYD O	perator Z	-RANK STEWAR	ez Su	rfa
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DRIVE		SAMPLE		TYPE OF		
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER		
-	29 SEPT	0.0		0.0	2.0			NONG		_
1	29 SEPt.			2.0	4.0	NO.	VE	6" DENNISON		
2	29 Serry			4.0	6.0	NOI	VE	6" DENNISON	)	
3	29 SEPt			6.0	8.0	6.3	3.0	6" DENNISON	JAL	6
4	29 SET		10.0	8.0	10.0	9.0	10,0	6"DENNISON	JAr	
5	29 Sent	10.0	12.0	10.0	12.0	10,5	12.0	6"DENNISON	JAT	
6	29 SEPT	12.0		12.0	14.0	NO	NE	-		
7	29 SEPT			14.0	16.0	NC	NE			

\*Dennison BArrell WillHot Hold THIS SAND

Date 29 SEPT 81 Job No. Boring No. 45-1 "F" ce El\_\_\_\_\_ CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS BALTEN GRAY SAND-COARSE NO SAMPLE, GRAY SAND-COORSE No SAMPLE, GrAY SAND - COArse GRAY SAND - Coarse TUBE GRAY SAND-COARSE, SAMPLE CONTAMINATED GRAY SANDE' & AGG., TUBE CONTAMINATED ROCK BIT 83 - UNABLE to SAMPLE GRAY ROCKS AND GRAVEL Rock Bit 8 4 - UNABLE to SAMPLE GRAY ROCKS AND GRAVE! of \_ 3 Sheet\_ Sheets

						BORING LOG FIELD DATA							
Project	BLA	PCK T	Butt	e Dr	Site								
Drill R	ig CE 4	522	Inspecto	DLEN	2041	2_0	perator <b>I</b>	RANK STEWA	RT Su	irfa			
SAMPLE	DATE	STRATUM		DRIVE		SAMPLE		TYPE OF		Γ			
NUMBER	TAKEN	FROM	то	FROM	то	FROM	то	SAMPLER					
			17.0										
8	29 SEPT	17,0		16.0	18.0	17.5	18.0	6"DENNISON	JAR				
9	30 SEPT		19.0	18.0	20,0	NO	NE	ROCK BIT 83	1				
		19.0											
10	10ct	\$		20.0	22.0	21.6	22.0	6"DENNISON	JAR				
11	loct	1079		25,0	27.0	NO	NË	6"DENNISON	-				
12	10CT			30.0	32.4-	30.1	32,4	64" BIT 5" CORE BARRE	5"n	IBE			
13	1 OCT			35.0	37.4	35.8	37,4	5" X 6 4 CORE BARRET	5"70	4.80			
			<u>.</u>	35.0	STA	RTED	BERM	WG WITH G	3/4	R			
14	10CT		40.0	40.0	40,5	40.0	40.5	CORE BARREL					
Level 1	1.32			40.5	48.0			63 Rack Bi	+				
15	2 at			48.0	49.0	48.1	490	5"x614"	5117	10			

Date 29 SEPT 81 Job No.\_\_\_\_ Boring No. US-1 "F" ce El\_\_\_\_ CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS BLUE CLAY STARTED AT 17.0 MED Rock BIT 83"- Blue CLAY WITH ROCKS MEP. BLUE SANDY CLAY MED. BLUE SANDY CLAY - TUBE BLUE SANDY CLAY-BARrell-GOOD SAMPLE MED. 5 BLUE SANDY CLAY MED. OCK BIT HARD BLUE CLAPWITH SMALL BOCKS REAM UNABLE TO SAMAGE G BRUC ELAY WITH BOCKS, HED. Sheet 2 of 3 Sheets

Project	BLAC	K Be	ITTE	DAM			B	ORING LOG FIELD DATA		
Drill R	ig CG 4	SZZ	Inspecto	r OLEI	0 204	0_0	perator Z	FRANK STENAL	ez Su	irfac
SAMPLE NUMBER	DATE TAKEN	FROM	TO	FROM	ТО	FROM	TO	TYPE OF SAMPLER		
16	ZOCT		20.0	51.0	53,4	51,1	52.4	S" XG14 CORE BARREL	5"7	ив
17	20cT	70,0	70,0	70.0	72.4	70.0	72,4	5" x 6 1/4" CORE BARREL	5"7	urg
18	ZOCT			75,0	77.0	75,2	77.0	5" × 6 1/4 DORE BARREL	5"70	BO
19	30cT			80.0	82.4	80,0	81.1	S"× 6 14 OFE BARREL	JAD	5º TL
20	30CT	-2 0		B5.0	87.0	85.0	87.0	5"X (, 1/4" CORE BARREL	JAL	5" TU
21	30cT			90,0	92.4	90.0	92,4	5" × 61/4 CORE BAREREL	JAR	5'74
22.	30CT			95.0	97,4	95.2	97,4	S"X 6 14" COLE BARRE	JAR	57
23	3DCT			97.4	99.7	97.5	99.7	S"X 6 14" CORE BArnel	JAR	5"

WES JAN 74 819 EDITION OF NOV 1971 MAY BE USED # HOLE CASED W/4" I.D. PVC PIPE WITH CAP ON BOTTOM, PUSHED TO 100'; CEMENT - WATER GROWT USED From 50' to 100' depth, IPAT CEMENT W/IPART Gel PLUS WATER USED From Of to 50 Depth. Hole CHECKED W/5 7/8" STEEL INST. to 100'.

Date 2 OCT 81 Job No. \_\_ Boring No. \_2/5-/ "F" e El\_\_\_\_ CLASSIFICATION AND REMARKS BILLE CLAY WITH ROCKS MED. ZEAM WITH 63/4" ZOCK LAT THEOUGH BILLECLAY AND ROCKS - UNABLE TO SAMPLE E MUDROCK (GrAY-BROWN CLAY) STIFF E MUDROCK (GRAY-BrOWD CLIPY) STIFF IBE MUD Rock (GRAY-BrOWN CLAY) STIFF BE MUDROCK (GRAY - BROWN CLAY)STREF BE MUD ROCK (GrAV BEOWN (UAP) STIFF " UBE MUD ROCK (STAY-BROWNCLAY)STIEF 18 MUD BOCK (GrAY-BROWN CLAY)STIFF BOCK BIT WITH 63/4" TO 100' Sheet <u>3</u> of <u>3</u> Sheets